
 

 
  

CITY OF BEAUFORT 
HISTORIC REVIEW BOARD 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 1167 

BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLINA 29901 
(843) 525-7011 

FAX: (843) 986-5606 
 

MINUTES 
The City of Beaufort 

HISTORIC DISTRICT REVIEW BOARD 
Full Board Wednesday, April 14, 2010, 2:00 P.M. 

Beaufort City Hall – 302 Carteret Street 
Beaufort, South Carolina   

  
  

Members Present 
John Gadson, Sr. Chairman 
Lisa Estes 
Greg Huddy 
Joel Newman 
Jay Weidner 
 
I. Call to Order: 
 

Mr. Gadson, Sr., Chairman called the meeting to order at 2:00 P.M.  He introduced the 
Board members, Lisa Estes, Greg Huddy, Joel Newman and Jay Weidner, and City of 
Beaufort staff, Donna Alley, Preservation Planner, and Julie Bachety, Recorder. 

 
II. Review Minutes: 
 

A. Minutes for the Meeting of March 10, 2010 
 
Motion:  Mr. Newman made a motion, seconded by Mr. Weidner, to approve the minutes 
as submitted.  The motion carried with a vote of five to zero. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
April 14, 2010 
Page 2 
 
III. Public Hearing 
 

A. 2801 Waddell Road – Demolition of structure, Final Review. 
 

Ms. Alley presented the applicant for demolition of the structure located at 2801 
Waddell Road.  Ms. Alley said currently the site is listed on the Beaufort County 
Historic Sites Survey, 1997, circa 1915 and the structure is listed outside of the  
historic district.  The property was posted and a public hearing notice was published 
in the Beaufort Gazette. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public hearing. 
 

IV. Review of Full Board Projects 
 

 A. 2801 Waddell Road – Demolition of structure, Final Review. 
Applicant:  Sheila Clark for William Clark, Jr. (HR10-13) 

 
Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  Ms. Alley said currently the 
site is listed on the Beaufort County Historic Sites Survey, 1997, circa 1915 and the 
structure is outside of the historic district.  The property was posted and a public 
hearing notice was published in the Beaufort Gazette.  The applicant is proposing 
demolition of the vacant and abandoned structure.  Ms. Alley referred to Section 
3.19:D.4 of the Unified Development Ordinance.  Ms. Alley said a concept for a 
replacement structure has not been submitted.  Staff recommends demolition. 
 
Sheila Clark was present on behalf of her brother, William Clark, Jr.  Ms. Clark 
asked if the demolition is approved what her next steps would be.  She feels the 
structure is too far gone to be kept.  The board members all have been to the site 
and agree that the structure is unsafe and unable to be rehabilitated. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public comment. 
 

Motion:  Mr. Weidner, made a motion, seconded by Ms. Estes, to grant final approval, as 
submitted due to the deteriorated condition of the structure.  The motion carried with a 
vote of five to zero. 

 
 
 
 



 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
April 14, 2010 
Page 3 

 
 

B. 401 Port Republic Street – Change after Certification, Final Review. 
Applicant:  Frederick & Frederick Architects for Earl & Elizabeth McMillen 
(HR10-12) 
 
Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  Ms. Alley said the applicant is 
requesting changes after certification to include, changing the front stairs from 
square to curved and front porch columns from 6 x 6 posts to Doric.  Ms. Alley said 
a variance was granted to allow new construction of the side yard decking.  Staff 
recommends final approval as submitted, of the changes. 
 
Michael Frederick was present on behalf of the owners.  Mr. Frederick said they 
want to change the shape of the stairs from square to curved and the front porch 
columns that are 6 x 6 to Doric.  Mr. Frederick referred to a similar staircase on the 
corner of Craven Street.  Mr. Weidner asked what the treatment will be from the 
bottom step out to the walkway.  Mr. Frederick said it will be one riser. 

 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public comment. 

      
Motion:  Mr. Newman, made a motion, seconded by Ms. Estes, to grant final approval, 

as 
submitted.  The motion carried with a vote of five to zero. 

 
C. 507 Craven Street – Alterations, Additions, Final Review. 

 Applicant:  Moon Longo for Fran & Charles Symes (HR10-17) 
 

Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  Ms. Alley said currently, the 
site is the location of an historic structure, listed on the Beaufort County Historic 
Sites Survey 1997, circa 1880, “contributes to the district”.  The applicant 
proposes alterations and additions to include construction of an additional new 
stair on the western elevation.  Ms. Alley said the proposed stair will match an 
existing one and materials, color and design will all match exiting. 
 
Moon Longo was present on behalf of the owners.  Mr. Longo said a new 
landscape plan has been done, which he did not have, that shows the design of the 
walkway.  He said it’s completely in the back of the house and there is only one 
neighbor who can see it and they are not against it. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public comment. 

 



 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
April 14, 2010 
Page 4 

 
Motion:  Mr. Newman made a motion, seconded by Ms. Estes, to grant final approval to 
the project as submitted.  The motion carried with a vote of five to zero. 

 
D. 1301 Congress Street – Post Facto, Final Review. 
 Applicant:  Dorothy M. Jones, Owner (HR10-14) 
 
 Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  Ms. Alley said the property is 

listed in the Beaufort County Historic Sites Survey 1997, circa 1925, “contributes 
to district”. The applicant has enclosed with glass a previously screened porch 
without a certificate of appropriateness or building permit.  Ms. Alley referred to 
the Northwest Quadrant Principles, Chapter 18, Section 18.2 and 18.3.  Ms. 
Alley said it is preferred that porch piers and balustrades still be seen after a porch 
is enclosed.  The transparent nature of glass will still allow the porch to read as an  

 “open” element.  Specifications shall be provided for all windows, trim and siding 
which have been replaced. 
 
Mr. Weidner asked to see a picture of what it looked like before the change was 
made.  Ms. Alley referenced a picture from the file and said it didn’t have any of 
the architectural detail, just a typical screened in porch.  Mr. Jones was present with 
Dorothy M. Jones and he apologized to the Board for doing the work without a 
permit. He said the glass was being thrown away and he thought it was good 
material that he didn’t want see thrown away, so he put it in.  Mr. Gadson asked 
when the work was done.  Mr. Jones said over a year ago. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public comment. 
 

Motion:  Mr. Newman made a motion, seconded by Mr. Weidner, that no action needs 
to be taken, but cautioned the applicant to submit for a permit before beginning any 

future 
modifications to the structure.  The motion carried with a vote of five to zero. 
 
E. 711 Prince Street – Alterations, Additions, New Construction, Preliminary 

Review.  Applicant:  CBL Architects, LLC for Nancy Law (HR10-15) 
 

Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  Ms. Alley said the property is 
listed in the Beaufort County Historic Sites Survey, 1997, circa 1790, “contributes 
to the  district”.  The applicant proposes alterations and additions to include a 
two-story addition to the east elevation, installation of a window in the dining  
 
 



 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
April 14, 2010 
Page 5 

 
room, and location of the HVAC to a front location to be screened.  A final  

 materials list, colors and manufacturer’s specifications shall be required for final 
review.  Staff recommends preliminary approval, as submitted. 

 
 Brandy Long was present for the owner and said most of what was submitted is 

obsolete because after speaking with Evan Thompson from Historic Beaufort 
Foundation they found restrictions in an historic covenant with Historic Beaufort 
Foundation.  Mr. Long presented some new plans for the Board to look over, but 
understood if they didn’t want to accept them.  Mr. Gadson asked the board 
members if they wanted to change the review of the project to a conceptual 
discussion since they don’t have the new material.  The board members agreed. 
 
Mr. Weidner would like to see the windows on the addition be more proportionate 
so it’s not so obvious that it’s an “addition”.  Mr. Huddy feels the windows don’t 
need to be all the same.  Mr. Long said the counter height is governing the 
windows.  Mr. Weidner does not want to see an “addition” stuck to such a 
magnificent federal style structure. 
 
Mr. Long said there may be some screening on the back. Ms. Estes asked if there 
is existing screening that matches.  Mr. Long said yes there is, but it will probably 
go away.  Mr. Weidner asked if the basement was going to be living space.  Mr. 
Long said it’s going to be extended. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public comment. 

 
F. 808 Scott Street – Alterations, Additions, New Construction, Preliminary 

Review.  Applicant:  CBL Architects, LLC for Diane & Rich O’Connor 
 (HR10-16) 
 
 Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  Ms. Alley said the property is 

not listed in the Beaufort County Historic Sites Survey, 1997.  The applicant 
proposes alterations and additions to include:  Phase One – removal of an existing 
trellis and brick knee wall at the dwelling entrance and replacement with a 
screened porch, to include a new roof, columns and a brick supporting knee wall. 
 Phase Two – two additions to the existing dwelling, garage renovations, and site 
improvements.  A final materials list, colors and manufacturer’s specifications 
shall be required for final review.  Staff recommends preliminary approval, as 
submitted.   

 
 
 



 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
April 14, 2010 
Page 6 

 
 Brandy Long was present for the owners.  Mr. Long said the big discussion is that 

the owners want to be able to add onto the home in about a year to 5 years.  The 
first phase is the closure of the screen porch to include a new roof, columns and a 
brick supporting knee wall.  He said the existing structures on the property will  

 
 
 stay “as is” right now.  Mr. Long said if the Board sees any red flags as to adding 

anymore square footage, he would like their comments.   
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public comment. 
 
The board members agreed to discuss the second phase of the project.  Mr. 
Weidner said he would be opposed to allow this to become a big long stretched 
one-story structure that does not relate to the neighborhood.  Mr. Huddy agreed 
with Mr. Weidner, but feels it’s not right to leave the applicant with the only 
option of demolition.  Ms. Estes is not strongly opposed.  Mr. Weidner said the 
block consist mostly of 1880 and 1890 houses. 
 

Motion:  Mr. Huddy, made a motion, seconded by Ms. Estes to grant final approval on  
phase one of the project.  The motion carried with a vote of five to zero. 
 
G. 907 Craven Street – Alterations, Additions, Minor Demolition, Final Review. 

Applicant:  CBL Architects, LLC for Tabernacle Baptist Church (HR10-18) 
 
 Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  Ms. Alley said the property is 

listed in the Beaufort County Historic Sites Survey, 1997, circa 1884, contributes 
to listed district”.  The applicant proposes rehabilitation of the historic structure 
to include, reconstruction of the front porch, removal of a non-historic rear 
addition, and new construction of a rear porch, new roofing, and various repairs 
in-kind.  On January 13, 2010, the applicant received conceptual approval.  All 
final materials and colors shall match existing.  Staff recommends final approval, 
as submitted. 

 
Brandy Long was present for the owners.  Mr. Long said its basically straight forth 
project.  Mr. Weidner liked the front porch elevation.  Mr. Weidner referred to a 
picture taken in the early 20th century that related to this project.  Mr. Weidner 
referred to the back porch columns.  He said looking on the site plan the driveway 
is  
 
 
 



 
 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
April 14, 2010 
Page 7 

 
right on top of the house.  He said since the trees near the street are mostly water 
oaks, he suggested taking three of them out so the driveway can be accommodated 
better. 

 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment. 
Mr. Gadson closed the public comment. 

 
Motion:  Mr. Weidner made a motion, seconded by Ms. Estes, to grant final approval, as 
submitted, to rehabilitation of the historic structure, reconstruction of the front porch, 
removal of a non-historic read addition, new construction of a rear porch, new roofing, 
and various repairs in-kind.  The motion carried with a vote of five to zero. 
 
*Mr. Gadson requested a five minute break* 
 
H. 313 King Street – Change after Certification, Main Residence, Final Review. 

Applicant:  Ansley Hester Manuel for Tom & Reid Davis (HR10-18) 
 
 Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  Ms. Alley said the property is 

a vacant lot.  The applicant proposes changes after certification to previously 
approved new construction of a single family residential structure and an 
accessory dwelling unit.  On February 12, 2008, the applicant presented 
conceptual plans for consideration.  On February 11, 2009, the applicant 
presented preliminary plans for review.  The Board granted preliminary approval, 
with conditions:  prevailing setback as staked shall be maintained.  The decision 
of Hardiplank was deferred.  On March 11, 2009, the applicant received final 
approval, with conditions:  Artisan Series Hardiplank Lap 5/8” as a secondary 
application only for use on two rear and side elevation appendages on the 
proposed main structure to be constructed of painted brick.  The approved siding 
shall be smooth finish and painted.  All trim details shall be wood.  Ms. Alley 
referred to Section 7.5 of the Unified Development Ordinance regarding parking.  
She also referred to Section 5.3.B of the Unified Development Ordinance 
regarding accessory dwelling requirements, which has been applied for under a 
separate application. 
 
Ansley Manuel was present along with Reid Davis, the owner, and Allen 
Patterson.  Ms. Manuel went over the proposed changes.  Mr. Patterson spoke 
about some additional issues.  Mr. Patterson said he met with the Building Codes 
Department and they found some foundation ventilations issues.  He added two 
vents on the rear with some metal decorative louvers under the air conditioning 
unit.  Mr. Patterson said the other issue is the location of the power service on the  
 



 
 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
April 14, 2010 
Page 8 

 
back of the house because the power company will not allow this.  Mr. Patterson 
said the service will be relocated. 
 
Mr. Newman suggested changing the size of the columns on both levels.  Mr. 
Weidner asked Mr. Patterson’s opinion.  Mr. Patterson agreed with Mr. Newman. 
Ms. Davis said changing them to 8 x 8 is fine. 
 
Ms. Estes said the “stakes” are missing.  She said this is important since the 
original approval was based on staking the property.  Mr. Patterson said he will 
look into this with Ms. Manuel. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public comment. 
 

Motion:  Mr. Weidner made a motion, seconded by Ms. Estes, to grant final approval, as 
Submitted, along with the following: 
 

• Screened doors will be added to front entry, upstairs porch and mudroom; 
• a three foot landing will be added to the rear screened porch; 
• a shed roof will be added at the mudroom entry; the mudroom door 

height will be reduced to 6’ 8” to accommodate the stoop; 
• the windows will be StormPlus by Marvin with aluminum clad exterior; 
• roofing manufacturer will change, but color and material will remain 

unchanged; 
• a revised stucco color was approved; 
• additional foundation vents will be installed per code; the power service 

panel will be relocated to the rear; 
• lower columns will be 8 x 8 and upper columns will be 6 x 6; 
• front porch windows will have panels to simulate jib doors; and 
• the front prevailing setback will be re-staked for the Board’s review.   

 
The motion carried with a vote of five to zero. 
 
I. 313 King Street – Change after Certification, Accessory Building, Final Review. 

Applicant:  Ansley Hester Manuel for Tom & Reid Davis (HR10-19) 
 

 Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  Ms. Alley said the property is 
a vacant lot.  The applicant proposes changes after certification to previously 
approved new construction of a single family residential structure and an 
accessory dwelling unit.  On February 12, 2008, the applicant presented  



 
 

Historic Review Board Minutes 
April 14, 2010 
Page 9 

 
 conceptual plans for consideration.  On February 11, 2009, the applicant 

presented preliminary plans for review.  The Board granted preliminary approval, 
with the conditions that the prevailing setback as staked shall be maintained and 
the  

 decision of Hardiplank was deferred.  On March 11, 2009, the applicant received 
final approval, with conditions the conditions with the Artisan Series Hardiplank  

 Lap 5/8” as a secondary application only for use on two rear and side elevation 
appendages on the proposed main structure to be constructed of painted brick.  
The approved siding shall be smooth finish and painted.  All trim details shall be  

 wood.  Ms. Alley referred to Section 7.5 of the Unified Development Ordinance 
regarding parking.  She also referred to Section 5.3.B of the Unified Development 
Ordinance regarding accessory dwelling requirements, which has been applied 
for under a separate application. 

 
Ansley Manuel was present along with Reid Davis, the owner, and Allen 
Patterson.  Ms. Manuel went over the proposed changes.  Mr. Patterson addressed  
 
the setback change.  He said he spoke with the City Building Official and now the 
garage needs to be 5’ to comply with the Fire Code. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public comment. 

 
Motion:  Ms. Estes made a motion, seconded by Mr. Newman, to grant final approval, as 
submitted with the following: 
 

• that hydrostatic vents will be added; 
• that a window will be added at the second floor, left elevation; 
• that windows will be StormPlus by Marvin with aluminum clad 
  exterior; and 
• that the setback will be 5’. 

 
The motion carried with a vote of five to zero. 
 

V. Old Business 
 
 No new business. 
 
 
 



 
 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
April 14, 2010 
Page 10 
 
VI. New Business 
 
 No new business. 
 
VII. Discussion 
 
VIII. Adjournment 
 
 Motion:  made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 
The Meeting adjourned at 4:15 P.M. 
 
 
Submitted by Julie A. Bachety, Recorder 


